1967

# State Of Utah, By And Through Its Road Commission v. Lloyd Stanger And Edna Olson Stanger, His Wife : Brief of Appellants

### NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a highway condemnation action brought by the plaintiff against defendants to acquire certain lands from the latter, wherein the issues before this Court relate to whether or not defendants can recover damages sustained by their contiguous remaining properties by reason of the loss of the lands taken and the construction of the project in the manner contemplated.

## DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The issues in this matter were reduced to a jury determination of the amount of “severance” damages, if any, sustained by defendant’s remaining properties by reason of the taking of .89 acre of land. The parties had previously stipulated as to the fair market value of the land taken.

From a jury verdict awarding defendants no “severance” damages, defendants filed a Motion for New Trial (R. 43), based primarily upon errors during the trial consisting of erroneous oral instructions and erroneous written instructions given to the jury at the end of the trial. The Motion for New Trial was denied.

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendants seek reversal of the Judgment on Special Verdict entered in this matter and of the Order denying them a new trial, and request that the matter be remanded to the Second Judicial District Court in and for Weber County for a new trial. Further, because of the importance of the issues involved in this case and many other pending cases, it is necessary that this Court clearly rule on the material distinctions between “severance” and “consequential” damages in eminent domain cases, and establish guidelines relating to the application of the doctrine of sovereign immunity—or to abolish it—in eminent domain cases.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

On December 21, 1965, plaintiff served a condemnation complaint upon defendants for the purpose of acquiring a portion of defendants' lands for highway uses incident to the construction of the Interstate Freeway Project, which ran in a general north-south direction through Weber County in the area of the community of Marriott. Defendants owned approximately 23 acres of land on the north side of the center line of Seventh Street, together with a residence and miscellaneous outbuildings located at the extreme southwest corner of their holdings.

To assist the Court reference will be made to Exhibit A, which was the trial map prepared by the plaintiff for the use of the trial of this matter. Exhibit A shows the relationship of defendants' lands to the Freeway, the location of their improvements, the area taken for highway purposes, the prior location of Seventh Street, and the location of the Interstate Freeway.

Before the construction of the freeway project Seventh Street was a level road extending in an east-west direction along the entire south side of defendants' properties, and their residence and garage were so located that direct ingress and egress to and from Seventh Street was had on a level grade (See Exh. 1 and 2).

The main portion of the Interstate Freeway did not require the taking of any lands from defendants since it passed their properties a short distance immediately west of their west property line; however, as



a part of the project it was determined that the originally level Seventh Street must be so altered that it should pass over and above the Interstate Freeway. To accomplish this a large overpass embankment was constructed on both sides of the Interstate Freeway in the general area of what formerly was Seventh Street. In order to avoid the removal and taking of several homes in the area, the overpass fill veered slightly to the south as it approached the Interstate Freeway from its east side (thereby requiring the taking of lands south of the original right-of-way line of Seventh Street on the east side of the Interstate Freeway), and on the west side of the Interstate Freeway the overpass fill veered even farther to the south of the former Seventh Street at the point where it crossed the Interstate Freeway so that, at that point, it was on lands completely south of the south right-of-way line of Seventh Street as it previously existed (Tr. 86). As the overpass road continued westerly it veered back to the north several hundred feet west of the Interstate Freeway so as to again join the original Seventh Street at grade. The "bend" in the route of the reconstructed Seventh Street thereby missed several homes on the north side of what was formerly Seventh Street on the west side of the Freeway; only the defendants' home was involved on the same side of Seventh Street on the east side of the Freeway.

By its Complaint (R. 1) plaintiff sought to acquire fee title to the .89 acre of land shown on Exhibit A. Of the total area taken, .66 acre consisted of a strip

of land varying between 30 and 40 feet in width and running most of the distance along their south boundary line, but which was within and constituted the north half of previously existing Seventh Street. The additional .23 acre of land was taken from within the occupied area of the Stanger holding so as to furnish an area for the construction of a service road serving the Stanger home and providing access at the easterly end of the overpass constructed on Seventh Street. Because the .66 acre in the right-of-way area of Seventh Street had long been subjected to a public easement for travel, the parties stipulated that the net taking of .23 acre should be valued at \$517.00. Each appraiser (Tr. 35, 68) agreed that the land value on a per-acre basis along the north side of Seventh Street had a fair market value of \$2,250.00 per acre and, as testified to by defendants' appraiser, Haven J. Barlow, had a highest and best use as residential property (Tr. 24-25).

The effect of the taking required defendants to secure access from their home and other buildings to the re-constructed Seventh Street at a point where the overpass leveled off on the east side of the freeway via a service road requiring a traveling distance of approximately 400 feet (Exh. A), as compared to their former means of access directly onto Seventh Street in front of their residence. This service road dead-ended against the Interstate Freeway fence approximately 200 feet west of their home, serving no other homes in the area; in fact, the service road through the west one-half of its distance from its connection to

re-constructed Seventh Street utilized the north half of what formerly was Seventh Street.

In addition, directly in front of their home an earthen-type embankment was constructed at a height of 17 feet above the original level of Seventh Street (Tr. 6), and the base, or "toe" of the embankment was 79 feet from defendants' residence (Tr. 86).

The trial of the damage issue involved started off with an underlying basic dispute between plaintiff's counsel and the Court, on the one side, and defendants' counsel on the other side. The initial dispute centered around the matter of "severance" damages and what factors contributing to damage could be considered by the appraisers and the jury. Further, the additional legal issue developed as the trial progressed relating to whether any or all of the damages sustained by defendants' remaining properties were recoverable in view of the doctrine of sovereign immunity.

Following the holding of the trial judge and the position taken by the plaintiff, the plaintiff's appraiser testified that the remaining properties of the defendants suffered no "severance" damages (Tr. 68), while the appraiser for the defendants testified that their remaining properties had suffered "severance" damages in the amount of \$5,806.00 (Tr. 38). Plaintiff took the position that "severance" damages had to be special, peculiar and unique to the properties of the defendants as compared with damages which others in the general neighborhood whose properties had not been taken

might suffer (Tr. 70-71); in fact, plaintiff's counsel in his opening statement based his case on the premise that the State would show that defendants' damages were not in fact peculiar to their properties (Tr. 66). This same position, plus the additional claim of sovereign immunity, was advanced by plaintiff in its Motion For Directed Verdict (Tr. 65-66). Although the Court reserved ruling on the Motion For Directed Verdict, throughout the trial the lower Court adopted the identical position of the plaintiff as to its interpretation of what constituted "severance" damages and its position relating to the State's immunity from liability in this case under the sovereign immunity doctrine.

Defendants contended that "severance" damages need not be special, peculiar or unique to their properties as distinguished from similar damage sustained by others in the neighborhood who might not be in court, and further claimed that the doctrine of sovereign immunity was totally inapplicable in this proceeding. Facing an uphill battle throughout the trial on the legal principles involved, defendants suffered an adverse 6-2 jury verdict, holding that their remaining properties had sustained no "severance" damages.

## ARGUMENT

### I.

THE VARIOUS FACTORS WHICH CONTRIBUTE TO SEVERANCE DAMAGES IN AN EMINENT DOMAIN ACTION DO NOT

HAVE TO BE SPECIAL AND UNIQUE FROM THOSE SUSTAINED BY OTHER PROPERTIES IN THE GENERAL NEIGHBORHOOD IN ORDER TO BE CONSIDERED.

Throughout the trial of this matter the trial judge repeatedly furnished the jury with illustrations of situations where land owners could not recover damages to their remaining properties in eminent domain actions—even though a portion of their lands had actually been taken — unless the damages to their remaining properties were unusual or unique to the neighborhood in general. For instance, one of the several remarks made to the jury during the course of the trial was as follows (Tr. 43):

“ . . . whether these people are so closely involved in this project because they have lost this piece of land, *it has to be unique in the neighborhood so that their difference is a genuine severance damage.* This will be a fact question that you will have to determine. (Italics added)

\* \* \*

“Now, whether this case is severance damage or consequential damage is for you to determine.” (Tr. 42)

In the Court's instructions to the jury at the conclusion of the trial, the same requirement was impressed on the jury that damages to the remaining properties of the defendants must be unique and different from the type of damage which others in the neighborhood

might suffer in order to constitute severance damage. In Instruction No. 7, the Court first correctly informed the jury that the method to be employed in determining damages to the remaining property of the defendants would be to consider the value of the remaining property before the severance of the part acquired and, secondly, the value of the remaining property after severance. This statement substantially states the general rule of the measure of damages to remaining properties which is followed in Utah. However, in the second and last paragraph of Instruction No. 7 the following incorrect statement of law was added by the Court over defendants' objection:

"This is true if the loss in value is the result of severing part of the land from the whole thereof and construction of the project as designed; but it is not true if the loss in value is in part, or entirely, because of the projects (project's) presents (presence) in the general area independant (independent) of this taking of the defendants' land not sufficiently related thereto so as to situation the defendant land owner differently then (than) neighbors who have not lost lands." (R. 38—7)

It is submitted that the trial judge was clearly wrong in his statements to the jury regarding severance damages, both as to comments made during trial and in Instruction No. 7, in requiring that such damages must be unique and different from those suffered by other properties in the neighborhood. It is further submitted that the trial judge completely confused the

rule with respect to severance damages with the rule applicable in cases involving consequential damages.

In order to properly understand the issue presented in this portion of the argument, it is well to define our terms and to examine past Utah Supreme Court decisions in the field of eminent domain. Section 78-34-10, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, outlines three pertinent sub-sections relating to the types of compensation and damages to be awarded in an eminent domain proceeding. These sub-sections will here be separately listed, with a statement in parenthesis under each indicating the type of compensation or damage which is present for classification purposes:

- (1) The value is the property sought to be condemned and all improvements thereon appertaining to the realty, and of each and every separate estate or interest therein; and if it consists of different parcels, the value of each parcel and of each estate or interest therein shall be separately assessed.

(This is compensation for the **TAKING**)

- (2) If the property sought to be condemned constitutes only a part of a larger parcel, the damages which will accrue to the portion not sought to be condemned by reason of its severance from the portion sought to be condemned and the construction of the improvement in the manner proposed by the plaintiff.

(This is **SEVERANCE** damage)

- (3) If the property, though no part thereof is taken, will be damaged by the construction of the proposed improvement, the amount of such damages.

(This is CONSEQUENTIAL damage)

Our Utah Supreme Court has consistently followed the foregoing classification of damages in its various decisions in recent years. In the case of *Springville Banking Company v. Burton* (1960) 10 U. 2d 100, 349 P. 2d 157, wherein no property was actually taken, but a street was divided in front of appellant's business establishment by the placement of concrete islands therein, this Court clearly held that such an action involved damages which were *consequential* in nature:

"We espouse the notion that if the sovereign exercises its police power reasonably and for the good of all the people, when constructing highways, the *consequential damages such as those alleged here*, are not compensable."

Similarly, in the case of *Fairclough v. Salt Lake County* (1960) 10 U. 2d 417, 354 P. 2d 105, the highway grade was reduced about 16 feet below the property owner's abutting land, without there being an actual taking of his property. Again, this Court recognized the situation as one involving consequential damages. Further, in the case of *Parker (Sine) v. State Road Commission* (1962), 13 U.2d 65, 368 P. 2d 585, wherein there was no actual taking of affected properties, the distinction between severance and consequential damages was again brought out:



“Contentions (1) and (3) may be viewed in the aggregate, since both pose the same fundamental question whether the State is suable for *consequential damage* to property not sought for condemnation.”

In the development of our Utah eminent domain law it is the present rule that cases involving *consequential* damages wherein the State of Utah is or might be a party litigant in court are controlled by the doctrine of sovereign immunity, which places the State of Utah beyond the grasp of the law. In short, under sub-section (3) of Section 78-34-10, *supra*, the State of Utah cannot be brought into court by any means whatever (except in rare cases), and consequential damages can only be secured by property owners against condemning authorities unable to get under the cloak of sovereign immunity, such as railroads and similarly situated utilities and agencies having eminent domain authority.

The distinction between severance damages and consequential damages has best been illustrated in Utah in the case of *Board of Education of Logan City v. Croft* (1962), 13 U. 2d 310, 373 P. 2d 697, involving the condemnation of certain lands for school grounds purposes. In that case the jury verdict form provided for damages in three parts — for the value of lands taken, for severance damages, and for consequential damages. In analyzing the situation this Court held that there could be no award for consequential damages since the award for severance damages “covered” and included consequential damages.

As a matter of fact, under the distinction between *severance* damages and *consequential* damages spelled out by our statute and the foregoing court decisions, there could never be both severance and consequential damage evidence in the same case where a partial taking occurs. Consequently, the trial judge's comment to the jury during the trial of this case constitutes an incorrect statement of the law:

"It is possible for the same piece of land to suffer both consequential damages, which is not recoverable, and severance damages . . . I will leave that to the jury." (Tr. 43)

A careful reading of the *Croft* case clearly points out the errors which the trial judge in this case adopted, in (a) failing to properly distinguish between severance damages and consequential damages, and (b) in failing to realize that the same elements and items of damages are not applicable to each. In the *Croft* case this entire matter was answered in one paragraph, as follows:

"Damages to land, by the construction of a public or industrial improvement, though no part thereof is taken as provided for under 78-34-10 (3), *contrary to the rule for severance damages*, is limited to injuries that would be actionable at common law, or where there has been some physical disturbance of a right, either public or private, which the owner enjoys in connection with his property and which gives it additional value, and which causes him to sustain a special damage with respect to his property in excess of that sustained by the public generally. It re-

quires a definite physical injury cognizable to the sense with a perceptible effect on the present market value; such as drying up wells and springs, destroying lateral supports, preventing surface waters from running off adjacent lands, or the depositing of cinders and other foreign materials on neighboring lands by the permanent operation of the business or improvement established on the adjoining lands.”

(Italics added)

The foregoing statement clearly explains what type of injury constitutes consequential damages. Further, it clearly states that the measure of severance damages is not restricted and limited as with those situations involving consequential damages; and in support thereof adopts the rule from 2 Nichols on Eminent Domain 326, Sec. 6.411 (1). As pointed out by Nichols in his general discussion of the subject (Sec. 6.441 - Sec. 6.4432 (2) ), consequential damages must be special and unique from those generally sustained in the general neighborhood; while severance damages are not so restricted and follow the general valuation rule set down in the case of *Weber Basin v. Ward* (1959), 10 U. 2d 29, 347 P. 2d 862, as follows:

“ . . . all factors bearing upon . . . value that any prudent purchaser would take into account . . . should be given consideration, . . . ”

A case of recent vintage from South Carolina will be cited at this point to further illustrate the error of the trial court's thinking that severance damages must be special and unique in the neighborhood in order to

be considered. In *South Carolina Highway Dept. v. Touchberry* (1966), 148 SE 2d 747, the general rule is quoted from 4 Nichols on Eminent Domain, Sec. 14.1 at page 473:

“A distinction must be drawn between consequential\* damages to a remainder area where part of a tract is physically appropriated and consequential damages to a tract no part of which is physically appropriated. In the latter case the damage must be peculiar to such land and not such as is suffered in common with the general public. *In the former case it matters not that the injury is suffered in common with the general public.*” (Italics added)

\*This type of “consequential damage” is defined by statute as ‘severance’ damage in Utah. Nichols points out (Sec. 6.4432) that, broadly speaking, “. . . all damages must of necessity be consequential since all damage is the consequence of an injurious act.”

In *State Highway Commission v. Bloom*, 93 N.W. 2d 572 (S. D. 1958), the court cited 18 Am. Jur., *Eminent Domain*, Sec. 265, and said on page 577:

“But where a part of an owner’s parcel or tract of land is taken for a public improvement such as a public highway the owner is entitled to be compensation for the part taken and for consequential damages to the part not taken *even though the consequential damage is of a kind suffered by the public in common.*” (Italics added)

In the *Bloom* case the court went on to hold that for the purpose of determining severance damage to

the part not taken, the part of defendant's land taken is to be considered as an integral and inseparable part of a single highway project not limited to the segment of the highway on his land.

27 Am. Jur. 2d, *Eminent Domain* (which is the present counterpart of 18 Am. Jur., *Eminent Domain*, Sec. 265), at Section 310, p. 124 elaborates on the foregoing rule:

“Where part of a parcel of land is taken by eminent domain, the owner is not restricted to compensation for the land actually taken; he is also entitled to recover for the damage to his remaining land. In other words, he is entitled to full compensation for the taking of his land and all its consequences, and the right to recover for the damage to his remaining land is not based upon the theory that damage to such land constitutes a taking of it, *nor is there any requirement that the damage be special and peculiar*, or such as would be actionable at common law; it is enough that it is a consequence of the taking . . . ”

(Italics added)

There are numerous cases from other states setting forth the foregoing rule, but the law is so clear as to require no further emphasis in this writer's opinion.

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