1968

State Of Utah, By And Through Its Road
Commission v. Lloyd Stanger And Edna Olson
Stanger, His Wife : Brief of Respondent

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a highway condemnation case. The issues on appeal relate to whether or not the jury received proper instructions concerning severance damages.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The parties stipulated to the value of the land taken. The only issue given to the jury was what amount, if any, should defendants receive as severance damage. The jury found that defendants' remaining land was not damaged. The Court signed a judgment on that verdict, and denied defendants' Motion for New Trial.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The jury verdict should be affirmed.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Respondent agrees with the Statement of Facts as set forth by appellants, except it wishes to have it fully noted that the street grade in front of appellants' property was not disturbed and the taking as evidenced by plaintiff's Exhibit "A" was in front of an unimproved portion of appellant's property which, in fact, was done for the benefit of appellants. Had this property not been taken and paid for by the state, presumably appellants would have been required to take their own property and construct what is in effect a frontage access road to the highway system.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

IN EMINENT DOMAIN PROCEEDINGS, DAMAGES CAN OCCUR TO PROPERTY WHICH ARE COMPENSABLE AND NONCOMPENSABLE. IN THIS CASE THERE WERE NO DAMAGES OF EITHER KIND.

Throughout the trial of this case, the Trial Judge correctly informed the jury of situations where landowners could not recover damages to remaining properties in Eminent Domain proceedings because damage to the remainder was consequential and noncompensable (Tr. 41-44; 45-46; 63-64; 70; 81-82; 94). The Trial Judge was clearly correct in his statements to the jury regarding severance damages, both in comments during trial

and in Instruction No. 7, requiring that these damages not be entirely due to the project's presence in the general area; that the severance damages be connected with and caused by the severance of the defendants' land. It is the law that in Eminent Domain cases there may be noncompensable damages resulting to landowners. It is the jury's duty to separate noncompensable damages from compensable damages and allow only the constitutional, "just compensation" to the condemnee. As pointed out in *Springville Banking Company v. Burton*, 10 U. 2d 100, 349 P. 2d 157 (1960), there may be noncompensable damages upon the exercise of Eminent Domain, especially where there is no taking, or a tiny taking as in this case, 0.22 of an acre.

In *Utah Road Commission v. Hansen*, 14 U. 2d 305, 383 P. 2d 917 (1963), the Court stated the general rule that the severance damage the property owner was entitled to was the "difference in the value of the remaining tract before and after the taking." The Court held that it is not the burdensome obligation of the state to pay fair value of the property taken and also have to pay a resulting damage to the remainder because of a non-compensable item of damages such as the cost of removal of personal property.

In this case it was ultimately proper for the Trial Court to instruct the jury that it is possible for the same piece of land to suffer both compensable and noncompensable damages. The problem of separation was properly left to the jury, (Tr. 42.) There are various limitations upon compensation for depreciation in value of the re-

maining or abutting land of a road project that are generally recognized. One main limitation is pointed out in the case of *State v. District, Fourth Judicial District*, 94 U. 384, 78 P. 2d 502 (1937) at Page 510:

“We believe that a line of demarcation should be drawn at the point of ‘actionable damage.’ The Constitution clearly does not require compensation for damages not recognized as actionable at common law but more a damaging of property ‘to the actionable degree’ the Constitution makers intended the landowner to have just compensation equally with the landowner whose property was physically taken.”

It is submitted that the Utah Constitution and U.C.A. 78-34-10(3) do not change the basic requirement of certainty of damages, but merely entitles the landowner whose property was not physically taken to the same damages that would be certain to be suffered by the landowner whose property was taken. The Court should not accord to property owners whose property is not taken more rights to damages than a property owner whose property is taken would have. Both types of situations should be treated equally, and if a property owner whose property is not taken suffers a consequential damage which is noncompensable then the property owner who is lucky enough to have a sliver, 0.22 acre in the case at bar, of his property taken by the state should not be allowed to recover more damages than the property owner whose property is not taken. Uncertain consequential, nonproximate damages should not be allowed in either case.

It is basic that damages must be certain and ascer-

tainable. Speculative mere possibility of harm is to be excluded from compensation.

A further important restriction upon recovery for depreciated value due to proximity of the project is the rule that the landowner must bear, without compensation such depreciation that results from inconvenience and other type damage common to the whole neighborhood. If such were not the law of the land, the burden of administration and cost upon the condemning authority would be prohibitive. Further, the burden of ascertaining damages and resulting benefits incurred by every individual in the neighborhood would be an impossible undertaking for the Courts, the expert witnesses and the juries. Each would have to become licensed clairvoyants.

All Courts have expressed reluctance to open the door to the flood of claims which would be common to everyone in the community. There is consistent tendency to allow redress only for those who have suffered real and substantial loss different than others in the area by reason of the public improvement. As stated at 170 ALR 722:

“. . . just compensation does not include diminution in the value of the remainder caused by the acquisition and use of adjoining lands of others for the same undertaking. This general rule is supported by all the cases in which it appeared possible to separate the damages caused to the remainder of the owner's tract by the use of the parcel taken from the damages caused by the similar use of adjoining land belonging to the other owners.”

And the same reasoning, that noncompensable damages should be separated where possible, is upheld by California in *Rose v. State*, 19 Cal. 2d 713, 123 P. 2d 505 (1942) pp. 520-521:

“In states such as California where the recovery of damages depends upon the infringement of some right which the owner of the land possesses in connection with his property decisions have clearly indicated that, *although the measure of damages is generally the diminution in market value, the evidence relied upon to establish such diminution must be based upon the depreciation flowing from the actionable injury which is the basis for the right to recover damages.* Thus, in *People v. Gianni*, 130 Cal. App. 584, 20 P. 2d 87, a small portion of land was taken for public highway purposes. It was contended on behalf of the landowner that because a small portion of land had been taken and because he was entitled to recovery for that injury, the damages to his remaining land should be based upon the total depreciation in the value of his remaining property even though that depreciation was caused primarily by an admittedly noncompensable element of damage, that is, diversion of traffic. The court said, however that while diminution in market value was ordinarily the test of damage to real property, the damages must be limited to those which accrue *by reason* (italics theirs) of the legal injury for which compensation was due. In a similar case, it was held that evidence as to the damage caused by a diversion of traffic by reason of highway construction was properly stricken from the record because the diminution in value resulting therefrom was not caused by any injury for which the landowner was entitled to recover damages. *City of Stockton v. Marengo*, 137 Cal. App. 760 764, 31 P. 2d 467. *It will be noted that*

this result was reached in California where a taking of property was involved. (Emphasis added.)

“A similar conclusion must also be reached where damage alone is involved. Many courts have indicated that the diminution of value in such cases cannot be based upon elements of damage for which the landowner is not entitled to recover. *Greer v. City of Texarkana*, 201 Ark. 1041, 147 S.W. 2d 1004; *City of Chicago v. Spoor*, 190 Ill. 340, 60 N.E. 540; *Cafden Interstate Ry. Co. v. Smiley*, 84 S.W. 523 27 Ky. Law Rep. 134; *Harrison v. Louisiana Highway Comm.*, 191 La. 839, 186 So. 354.”

In the railroad nuisance case of *Stockdale, et al v. Rio Grande Western Ry. Co., et al*, 77 P. 849, 28 Utah 201 (1904), page 853, this Court stated:

“We do not wish to be understood as holding that every inconvenience that an individual may be subject to in the possession and enjoyment of his property because of the construction and operation of a railroad or other public utility in the vicinity of his premises entitles him to damages or injunctive relief. *The rule is well settled that no recovery can be had for losses and inconveniences which are suffered in common with the general public.*” (Emphasis added)

The same reasoning is well explained at 22 ALR 148:

“In *Austin v. Augusta Terminal R. Co.*, 108 G. 671 L.R.A. 755, 34 S.E. 852 (1899), it was held that,

“. . . in the clause of the Georgia Constitution providing that ‘private property shall not be taken or damaged for public purposes without just or adequate compensation being first paid, the word damaged is used in its usual sense as

a law term and does not change the substantive law of damages or create a cause of action wherein none previously existed; nor does it abrogate the principal expressed in the phrase "damnum absque injuria." . . . Thereafter what is damage by one is damage by all; and, likewise, what is damnum absque injuria to one is so to all. If one landowner diminishes the market value of his neighbor's house by cutting off light and air therefrom, he is not required to make good the depreciation. He had a right to build a wall, and legally speaking, he has not damaged his neighbor. So, too, if a city should erect a public building, or a railroad put up a warehouse, and cut off the same easement of light and air, neither would they be liable, for they had the same right to build, and neither had they damaged the adjoining lot owner."

In *State Highway Commission v. Silva*, 71 N.M. 350, 378 P. 2d 595 (1962), the old highway was left in place, in effect as a frontage road and barricade at a point beyond Silva's property. The Court citing other jurisdictions held that if there remains reasonable access to the main highway system; and, though remaining access may be more circuitous, his injury is the same in kind even though greater in degree, as that suffered by the general public and is damnum absque injuria. That is the precise circumstance in the case at bar.

Under the Utah Constitution, a person whose property has *suffered special damage different in any substantive degree* than others for the public use has the same rights and is given the remedies for the protection of his property from the injury as would be accorded him if his property was actually taken by a private party, but

such damage must be *actionable, direct and substantial*. This notion is set forth in *Springville Banking Company v. Burton*, 10 Utah 2d 100, 349 P. 2d 157 (1960), where an abutting landowner was not allowed to recover for damages because of traffic dividing islands

Appellants here would have us believe that because this Court defined the word “damages” in *Board of Education v. Croft*, 13 Utah 2d 310, 373 P. 2d 697 (1962), under 78-34-10(3), it meant to say that noncompensable damages could never co-exist with severance damages. That merely because a landowner is fortunate enough to have a sliver of his parcel of land physically taken by the condemning authority, that he is entitled to collect damages that would be noncompensable to all other landowners suffering a similar reduction in value though there was no physical taking. But the very fact that this Court disallowed \$1,000.00 consequential damages given by the jury in its special verdict in *Croft*, stating that such damages were included in the award for severance damages, demonstrates that the Court recognized that it is logical that the same piece of land may suffer both recoverable and nonrecoverable damages. In the *Croft* case, when a part of the total parcel was taken, as in this case, and the consequential damages were properly separated by the jury it was held that the landowner could not recover for consequential damages though a part of his land was actually taken.

It would be rank discrimination to allow one landowner to recover damages that another could not recover, just because he was lucky enough to have a small part

of his land actually taken. Such allowance would be contrary to the intent manifested by the Constitution. Interrogatory number 3 of the special verdict "how much, if any, of the above are noncompensatory incidental damages," was properly put to the jury. Of course, the answer was zero, because the verdict of the jury was that the evidence did not support *any loss* in value due to the severance of the land taken (Instruction No. 8), compensable or otherwise.

If appellants' argument is accepted, there would not only be unjust discrimination and unjust compensation paid, contrary to all constitutional concepts, but public authorities would be required to pay more damages than a private infringing owner would be required to pay under the circumstance of a similar nature. That is, the private owner would not be liable for damages consequential in nature, whereas the tax paying public would be required to pay for any and all ordinarily non-compensable damages.

As has been pointed out, the jury verdict form asked for "*all loss in value*" because of the severance of the land and the construction of the project. Instruction number 9 stated that references to the word "damages" had reference to "just compensation." Instruction number 10 states that; ". . . if the public takes lands directly involved in a project and uses it to bring about construction of a nature that destroys value, then severance damages may well be present." Instruction number 14 on just compensation states: "In other words, *all* of the factors and elements affecting value of prop-

erty which well-informed buyers and sellers would consider can be considered by you in arriving at your decision.” (Emphasis added) It should be noted that the State’s expert witness, Memory H. Cain, Jr., was asked questions concerning damage to the remainder, such as privacy, cracks, access and distance to the fill, (Tr. 68-69.) He also explained why he felt there had been no damage (Tr. 68-70) and it was the jury’s right to believe him. The Trial Judge asked counsel for suggestions to relate to the jury on the difference between noncompensatory and compensatory damages, (Tr. 98) and appellants cannot now object to an improper or unclear distinction, if indeed there is any confusion.

If such instructions are considered as a whole, as the jury was instructed along with testimony that there were no severance damage at all (Tr. 68), it is submitted that there is no confusion, and the issue of severance damages was properly and fairly submitted to the jury.

Despite appellants’ contentions, there is no basis to assume that the reason Mr. Cain, the state’s appraiser, found no severance damage, was because he was using the Court’s definition of what constituted severance damage. Appraisers can and do differ widely in their opinions. Mr. Cain was asked in his opinion if there was any severance damage. He answered no, and gave good reasons why he felt there had been no damage. He felt that there was better access, better privacy and the same snow removal and garbage pick up. He also said that some other homes in the area similarly situated had suffered no damage either, (Tr. 68-78). The Court had not yet mentioned Slim Olsen’s case or the Se Rancho Motel.

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